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The United States Custom House in Savannah, Georgia, is located on the 
corner of East Bay and Bull Streets, just north of Johnson Square* It 
fronts Factor's Walk, the center of Savannah's early commercial and ship­ 
ping district. Diagonally across Bay Street is City Hall.

The July 30, 1852, issue of the Savannah Morning News provides a con­ 
temporary description of the original appearance and use of the Custom 
House: "It is built of granite, fronts 110 feet on Bay Street, and ex­ 
tends back to Bay lane 90 feet. The entablature is supported by six 
fluted solid granite columns, thirty feet high and three feet in diameter. 
—The whole is enclosed with a heavy iron railing. The internal arrange­ 
ments are adapted to the Post Office, Custom House Offices, and stores, 
and a splendid court room for the Circuit and District Courts of the 
United States—with convenient rooms for the Juries, and offices for the 
Judges, Clerk, Marshall, and District Attorney, &c. The whole is fire 
proof, and is finished in a style of art which reflects the greatest 
credit upon Mr. NpRRIS, the Architect and superintendent." Actually, the 
building is not fire proof because it contains an open staircase, a fire 
hazard.

The building in exterior appearance has changed little since its con- 
struction. With additional federal buildgnfs in Savannah, use of the 
Custom House is restricted now to custom and related services.

Built in the Greek Revival style, the Custom House is rectangular with a 
raised basement and two floors. Surfaces are smooth, dressed gray granite 
from Quincy, Massachusetts. Dominating the East Bay Street or front 
facade, is a perHmented portico with six monolithic columns which are 
fluted and have capitals carved with a tobacco leaf motif. The projected 
section on the south or back side of the building is also pedimented.

There are eleven openings on the front facade of the two upper stories: 
three centrally placed entrances flanked by four windows on each side 
en the first floor; and eleven windows across the second story. The 
side facades have five openings. All windows are six-over-six. Crowning 
the walls is a siiqple, unadorned entablature which is in keeping with the 
absence of external ornament on the building. One raised, gilded words, 
"UNITED STKEES CUSTOM HOUSE" on the frieze of the front side have been 
added. An iron fence encloses the property.

The basic interior floor plan has changed little, although office areas 
have been renovated resulting in the usual lowering of ceilings, removal 
of original fixtures, and closing of fireplaces, Not altered is the most 
significant architectural feature of the interior, the central double 
circular stair. Three arches define the main entrance foyer from the 
stair and circular hall encasing the stairwell. Ohe stair itself is 
marble (matching the marble floors) with an iron railing which is carried 
around the second floor gallery overlooking the stairwell* The three 
arches are repeated at the second story landing. Above the stairwell is
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a semicircular skylight which gives the effect of a small dome. Behind 
the stairwB&l on the first floor is a back entrance as well as the 
interior stair to the basement,

The building dimensions are 109' -10" x 52 '-1".
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecturally, the United States Custom House in Savannah is cne 
of the most significant pd>lic buildings in the city. Historically, 
it syirbolizes the importance of Savannah as "Georgia's port city" 
during the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries.

The site of the Custom House is ijnaportant to the history of Savannah. 
Firmin Gerveau's 1837 panoramic view of the city shows a one-story 
frame house and shop at the corner of Bull and Bay Streets. Ohe 
house, which was built about 1733, was rented by Janes Edward Oglethcepe, 
founder of the Georgia Colony, upcti his return visits to Savannah. At 
the rear of the lot stood the building from which John Wtesley 
preached his first semen on .American soil on March 7, 1736.

The first custom office in Savannah opened in 1789 in Cdmerce Row en 
Bay Street, and was replaced by a custom house in 1819 en East Bryan 
Street. When the latter burned in 1837, the Custom House was moved 
to the City Exchange.

in 1845, the federal government had purchased grotnd at the comer 
of Bull and Bay Streets for a new custom house. John S. Norris, 
New York architect, was enployed as both designer and st^ervisor of 
cx»struction. The July 20, 1848, issue of the Savannah Weekly 
Qeoffffian* described the laying of the cornerstone' wilh masonic honors 
for what was called the "most iirposing edifice upcn the most classic 
spot in Savannah." The same article noted various -Utpcovements to 
the city, including seme along the waterfront, such as better lighting 
of the harbor.

On July 28, 1852, Architect Norris wrote Acting Secretary of the 
Treasury, W. L. Nddge, that "the oonstructicn of the Savannah Custom 
Itouse, erected from my Designs & wder ray superintendaice, was conpleted 
on the 24th. M _he letter also discloses that the building as con­ 
structed differed from first plans. He further noted that delays, 
during 1847, were due to a change of plans and the purchase of additional 
property. Finally, operations oonnienoed "upon the large Plan" and were 
oonpteted four years later in 1852. Norris added that "I do not think 
there has been a building of similar construction erected in any shorter 
period of time! it being completely fire proof inside and outside."
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No, 8 Significance (continued)

Cn July 29, 1852, Norris invited the public to view the new 
Custom House built in the Greek Revival style. Located a 
short distance from the waterfront, the structure housed 
numerous government agencies, including the Federal Court, 
but its primary functions were connected with operations of 
the port of Savannah. In 1860, the case of the yacht 
"Wanderer" was tried before the court as the last violation 
of the law against the importation of slaves. 2he following 
year, Cn March 8, 1861, the Confederate flag flew from the 
Custom House staff, one day after adoption of the Ordinance 
of Secession by the Georgia State Convention.

Presently, the Custom House is used solely for custom-related 
services, because other federal offices have moved to newer 
buildings. Although its function has been reduced to a single 
agency, its importance to Savannah has not diminished* Located 
in view of Factor's Walk and on a prime corner in the downtown 
section, it remains both a visual and an historical anchor to 
the city. Its national iirportance has been recognized by its 
designation as an Historic Custom House.
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